

# X-Sign Broadcast User Manual

# Copyright

Copyright 2022 by BenQ Corporation. All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, transmitted, transcribed, stored in a retrieval system or translated into any language or computer language, in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, magnetic, optical, chemical, manual or otherwise, without the prior written permission of BenQ Corporation.

All other logos, products, or company names mentioned in this manual may be the registered trademarks or copyrights of their respective companies, and are used for informational purposes only.

# Disclaimer

BenQ Corporation makes no representations or warranties, either expressed or implied, with respect to the contents hereof and specifically disclaims any warranties, merchantability or fitness for any particular purpose. Further, BenQ Corporation reserves the right to revise this publication and to make changes from time to time in the contents hereof without obligation of BenQ Corporation to notify any person of such revision or changes.

# Table of contents

First Establishment	4
Registering a new account as an administrator	4
Accessing X-Sign Broadcast	
Creating a new account for regular users	
Account verification	
X-Sign Broadcast	
Broadcast overview	
Adding devices	
Adding devices through QR code	
Adding devices for version below 2.3.0.0	
Tag management	
Creating a tag after device binding	
Creating a tag before device binding	
Editing tags	
Editing devices	24
Equipment update	
Publishing messages	
Using Create Schedule	
Using Create interrupt	
Schedule Management (History)	41
Device Report	
User management	44
-	

# First Establishment

### Registering a new account as an administrator

With BenQ IAM (Identify and Access Management), you can manage all of your BenQ services (including X-Sign Manager) in one account. Follow the steps below to register an account and connect to X-Sign Manager.

With BenQ IAM (Identify and Access Management), you can manage all of your BenQ services (including X-Sign Manager) in one account. Follow the steps below to register an account and connect to X-Sign Manager.

- 1. Go to BenQ Service website https://service-portal.benq.com/login. Suggested browsers are Chrome, Firefox.
- 2. If you are an administrator, click **Register BenQ Account** to register an Administrator account for the company.

				English <del>-</del>
	* *	Welcome to B	enQ Service	
*		BenQ Account	Over the later of the second	
FEE SHOP		Beng Account	Organizational Account	
	*		<i>S</i>	
		Passworu	~	
		L	og in	
		Keep me signed in	Forget ID / password?	
			Resend verification email Register BenQ Account	
	Message			×

The email has not been verified. We'll send the email from "BenQ", so you can quickly search for it. If it isn't in your inbox, check your folders. If a spam filter or email rule moved the email, it might be in the Spam, Junk, Trash, Deleted Items, or Archive folder.

3. After you click **Register BenQ Account**, you will see the following message. Go to **Click** here to proceed.



4. Fill in the following fields and click **Submit** to create a new Administrator account.

Sign up	×	
*E-mail	Use email as account ID	-
*Account ID	REMIND: Please do NOT using your personal data to fill the account name. It may increase the risk to reveal you privacy.	
*Password		•
	Submit Cancel	

- For the account ID, enter a value between 4 and 20 characters long. Only numbers (0-9), upper and lowercase alphabets (A-Z, a-z), and the following special characters (-)(.)(\_) are allowed in the account ID and name.
- The password must be a combination of alphanumeric and must be between 6-12 characters. Passwords like "2945678" (all numbers), "eduabsc" (all alphabets), "12ab" (less than 6 characters), and "12abcd345678efg" (more than 12 characters) are unacceptable.
- Uppercase and lowercase letters don't need to be typed the same way every time you key in the password.

5. If you are a regular user, ask your company's administrator to create a user account for you. After you receive the account, click **Log in** under **BenQ Account** directly after verifying your email.



6. If your organization has authenticated AD (Active Directory) server, you can use your own organizational email and password to login.

* *	Welcome to I	BenQ Service
SHOP	BenQ Account	Organizational Account
	Password	کې Log in
	Keep me signed in	Forget ID / password? Resend verification email Register BenQ Account

# Accessing X-Sign Broadcast

Before you begin, make sure that you have a valid account that has been registered. Two ways are provided to access your account:

1. Go to BenQ Service website https://service-portal.benq.com/login. Log in and choose **Broad-** cast.

		English <del>-</del>
* *	Welcome to BenQ	) Service
*	BenQ Account Or	rganizational Account
TEE SHOP		
	Account ID or Email	
		Ø
	Log in	
	Keep me signed in	Forget ID / password? Resend verification email
		Register BenQ Account
2		
BenQ Service Portal		▲ BenQ [→Logout III
BenQ Service Portal Your Service		Logout III
Your Service		▲ BenQ [→Logout III
	Broadcast	▲ BenQ [→Logout III
Your Service	Broadcast	▲ BenQ [→Logout III
Your Service	Broadcast	▲ BenQ [→Logout III
Your Service	Broadcast	▲ BenQ (>Logout :::
Your Service	Broadcast	Legout ∷
Your Service		Legou ∷
Your Service		Lera () Logout Logout
Your Service The service Ams We provide		

2. Go to X-Sign Broadcast website https://www.benq.com/en-us/business/ifp/x-sign-broadcast.html. Click **Get Started** to go to the Broadcast page.

û BenQ.com   888-818-	-5888   CoVid-19 Sta	tement				🛱 Cart 🚺   👤 Login
BENQ DISPLAY	SOLUTIONS	PRODUCTS	RESOURCES	SUPPORT	CONTACT US	Q
BenQ Display Solutions > Int	eractive Flat Panel > X S	ign Broadcast				

### X-Sign Broadcast

The Smart Broadcasting System with Instant Delivery and Easy Management

X-Sign Broadcast is a wireless broadcast system that can push alerts, messages and announcements during class. Unlike traditional classroom messaging systems, X-Sign Broadcast ensures immediate message delivery as well as group notification. Serving as a nextgeneration information center, X-Sign Broadcast lets you manage class time content and broadcast enriching material from any device. Creating an engaging learning environment has never been easier.





# Creating a new account for regular users

- 1. As an administrator to create a new account for regular users, go to BenQ Service website: https://ams.benq.com. Suggested browsers are Chrome, Firefox.
- 2. Log in and choose **IAM**.

BenQ Service Portal			Logout III
Your Service			
IAM	X-Sign	DMS	>
We provide			
IAM	X-Sign	DMS	

3. Click Create New Account to continue.

BenQ Ident	ity and Access Manage	ment		💄 Head Quarter 🅞 Logout
Account Managem	Role Management	Agent Setting	Service	BENQ

Account Man	agement			
Create New Account	Import			Search: Q
Status 🔺	Account ID	Q Name	Q 🔺 E-mail	۹) 🔺
1. 🗸 Active	bobbygmail	StoreManager	bobby85031	6@gmail.com
2. 🗸 Active	bobbybenq	StoreManager2	Bobby.Y.Che	en@BenQ.com

4. Fill in the following fields. Be sure to enter the correct email address and activate the X-Sign and Broadcast service. Click **Submit** to create a new account.

BenQ Identity and	d Access Management						3	💄 BenQ	[→Logout	
Account Manageme	nt Role Management	Agent Sett	ing	Se	rvice			X	D	ЛÌ
								X-Sign	DMS	AMS
Create Ne	ew Account							X		- 1
E-mail			Service Se					Broadcast		
	Use email as account ID		Enable Service	unt as substitute a	dministrator, has all of Role	tre permissions, two	accounts at most			•
Account ID			<b>Z</b>	X-Sign	Schedule Manage	r 🔻	Create a new rol	le		
	REMIND: Please do NOT using your personal data to fill the account name. It may increase the risk to reveal you privacy.		D	DMS	Guest	•	Create a new rol	le		
Password				AMS	User	•	Create a new ro	10)		
Confirm Password			<ul> <li>X</li> </ul>	Broadcast						
Name										
Company	BenQ									
Country/Area	Taiwan									
Timezone	(UTC+08:00) Taipei	]								
Note	within 150 characters									
		¢					-			
						Submit	Cancel			

You can easily switch to different services, **X-Sign**, **DMS**, **AMS**, **Broadcast**, by clicking the icon on the upper right corner.

5. The account has been created and a verifying email is sent to the new account owner.

Message	×
The account has been created.We'll send the email from "BenQ". If i	t
isn't in your inbox, check your folders. If a spam filter or email rule m	oved
the email, it might be in the Spam, Junk, Trash, Deleted items, or Ard	chive
folder.	
Close	e

## Account verification

1. Users receiving verifying emails should click the verification link in the email within 72 hours.

Hi, 111777	
10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	ssigned you to be a member of BENQ.
To verify your email, please click	
Verification Link	
* The link will expire in 72 hours	
Best wishes,	
BenQ member center	
Why we need user verification ema	il?
	asset. To protect each client's privacy and user right, every

The account can be created only by the administrator (IT personnel) on BenQ IAM. Users cannot create an account by themselves.

2. After clicking the link, you will see a message notifying that the email has been verified.



3. Click **Log in** to access X-Sign Manager. For more information about how to log in, refer to Accessing X-Sign Broadcast on page 7.

# X-Sign Broadcast

X-Sign Broadcast delivers all kinds of customized messages, including evacuation and emergency alerts. There are two modes of message delivery: Interrupt and Schedule. Interrupt messages are delivered to the class immediately, appearing on the display's screen during class. Schedule messages can be scheduled beforehand to appear on the display at a certain date and time. And because the client is connected to the web, it is possible to schedule messages using any computer, Android smart device, or X-Sign-compatible display.

## Broadcast overview

While logging in, select **Broadcast** > **Equipment Management**. You will see three main parts, as described in the table below:

Available space : 99.7 GB							22 Account Manag	iement 💄 BenQ 🌐 Language 📢
CMS Broadcast	Equipment Manage	ment						
Equipment Management	All device (6)	+ Equi	pment update	2		H 🗹	2 * 0	2 Search Q
Schedule Management		All dev	ice					
Device Report     License Management	<ul> <li>BenQ School (4)</li> <li>BenQ School 2 (0)</li> </ul>	Status 👻	Category	Name	Owned tags	Device ID	Current	pack
User Management	BenQ School 3 (0)	•		828_test	BenQ School	6H7WSHSF	1.2.2.0	
About	New BenQ School (2) New School_2 (2)			Class A	BenQ School New BenQ School New	TWWVATQZ	1.0.1.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:37
	New school_2019 (2)			Class B	BenQ School > New BenQ School > New	82LD7GFX	1.0.2.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:38
		•		Lab_RM7502K		7LGDLRTP	2.0.1.0	
				Lab_RP7501K		JD3P2BJ6	2.0.1.0	
	<u> </u>			test648	BenQ School	GR3EG4P6	1.2.2.0	
	1	L			2			
					5			
					< 1 >			

	ltem	Description
Ι.	Device Tab	You can check the devices/tags here and see the details in the operation tab.
		🛨: Create a tag 🛛 🕄 : Sort Descending 📋 : Delete a tag

2.	Editing Tab	You can edit the devices/tags by choosing the buttons in this area.
		• E Create Schedule: Read Using Create Schedule on page 28 for more information.
		• 🕑 Create interrupt: Read Using Create interrupt on page 35 for more information.
		• Z Edit tag/ Edit device: Read Editing tags on page 22 and Editing devices on page 24 for more information.
		•  Screen Settings/ Device Control
		• (i) Device info
		• IIII Inspect report: Read Device Report on page 43 for more information.
3.	Operating Tab	You can see the corresponding content while switching the devices/ tags on the device tab.

## Adding devices

Û

We recommend using DMS to add new devices so you can manage multiple devices more easily.

If your devices have been enrolled via DMS, skip this step as the device list in X-Sign Broadcast will be synced automatically.

- To manually add more devices, refer to Adding devices through QR code.
- For version < 2.3.0.0, refer to Adding devices for version below 2.3.0.0.

#### Adding devices through QR code

1. Open BroadcastSetting. Install the DMS app on your mobile device and scan the QR code.



2. After filling in the setting in DMS app on your mobile device, the Broadcast will be activated successfully.



Adding devices for version below 2.3.0.0

I. To add a new device, go to **Broadcast > Equipment Management**.

CMS Broadcast	Equipment Manage	ment						
Equipment Management	« All device (6)	+ Equi	pment updati	•		iii 🗹 🖊	• •	Search
Schedule Management		All dev	ice					
Device Report License Management	BenQ School (4) BenQ School 2 (0)	Status *	Category	Name	Owned tags	Device ID	Current version	pack
- User Management	BenQ School 3 (0) New BenQ School (2)	0		828_test	BenQ School	6H7WSHSF	1.2.2.0	
About	New School_2 (2)	0		Class A	BenQ School S New BenQ School S New	TWWVATQZ	1.0.1.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:37
New school_2019 (2)	0		Class B	BenQ School New BenQ School New	82LD7GFX	1.0.2.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:38	
		0		Lab_RM7502K		7LGDLRTP	2.0.1.0	
				Lab_RP7501K		JD3P2BJ6	2.0.1.0	
				test648	BenQ School	GR3EG4P6	1.2.2.0	

- 2. Click 😑 to Add a New Device.
- 3. Enter your device ID and device name.

Available space : 99.7 GB					Account Management	🚨 bobbyger	🕀 Language	.7
CMS Broadcast	Equipment Mana	gement » /	Add a New Device					
Equipment Management	Add a New	Device						
Schedule Management Device Report	*Device ID:			0	7			
License Management User Management About	*Device Name:	Character Li	imit: 32 characters		Ī			
	Tag:	Edit	*Equipment will apply selected tags' sohe					
		Finish						

• Find your display ID in **BroadcastSetting** > Device.

S All Apps			
Long click the icon to uninstall th	he focus app.		
BenQ Suggest BroadcastSetti	Browser Clock	Downloads	ES File Explorer EZWrite 4.0 Lite
		W	
InstaQPrint InstaQShare	Multimedia Search	WPS Office	Zoom
BroadcastSetting			
Device	Device status: Vinpaired Display ID: 7U85BSM9		
About	Device Name:		
Quit			

Be sure that the display is connected to the Internet and is set to the correct time zone.

• The display is successfully paired with X-Sign Manager when the device status shows "Pairing success" and the device name is correctly displayed.

Device     Display ID:       7U85BSM9		Device status:
About Device Name:		Pairing success /X-Sign Manager connected.
About Device Name:	Device	Display ID:
Adout		7U85BSM9
	About	

# Tag management

You can create tags to group devices.

### Creating a tag **after** device binding

I. Create a tag by clicking 🛨.

Xvailable space : 99.7 GB							22 Account Manage	iment 💄 BenQ 🌐 Langu	iage 🔎
CMS Broadcast	Equipment Managen	nent							
Equipment Management	« All device (6)	+ Equip	oment update			<b>H</b>	2 * 0	Search	٩
Schedule Management	E = 🗎	All devi	се						
Device Report License Management	<ul> <li>BenQ School (4)</li> <li>BenQ School 2 (0)</li> </ul>	Status 🔻	Category	Name	Owned tags	Device ID	Current version	pack	
User Management	BenQ School 3 (0) New BenQ School (2)	•		828_test	BenQ School	6H7WSHSF	1.2.2.0		
About	New School_2 (2)	0		Class A	BenQ School New BenQ School New	TWWVATQZ	1.0.1.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:37	
	New school_2019 (2)	0		Class B	BenQ School > New BenQ School > New	82LD7GFX	1.0.2.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:38	
		0		Lab_RM7502K		7LGDLRTP	2.0.1.0		
				Lab_RP7501K		JD3P2BJ6	2.0.1.0		
		0		test648	BenQ School	GR3EG4P6	1.2.2.0		
					< 1 >				
					< 1 >				

2. Enter the tag name, select the corresponding device(s), and click **Confirm**.

Available space : 99.7 GB								🚑 Account Ma	anagement	💄 BenQ	🌐 Language	,0
CMS Broadcast	Equipment	Management >	Create tag									
Equipment Management	Create	e tag										
Schedule Management	*Tag name:	New School 3		]								
License Management	Selected ed	quipment(2)						Search	٩			
User Management About		Device Name	Owned tags	Device ID	Device version	pack						
		828_test	BenQ School	6H7WSHSF	1.2.2.0							
		Class A	BenQ School S New BenQ School S	TWWVATQZ	1.0.1.0	Premium	2019-12-28 1	5:48:37				
		Class B	BenQ School New BenQ School N	82LD7GFX	1.0.2.0	Premium	2019-12-28 1	5:48:38				
		Lab_RM7502K		7LGDLRTP	2.0.1.0							
		Lab_RP7501K		JD3P2BJ6	2.0.1.0							
		test648	BenQ School	GR3EG4P6	1.2.2.0							
			<	1 >								
			Cancel	Confirm								

3. The tag, "New School 3", is successfully created.

Available space : 99.7 GB							22.	Account Manag	ernent 💄 BenQ 🧲	🕽 Language 🏾 🔎
CMS Broadcast	Equipment Managem	ent								
Equipment Management	« All device (6)	+ Equi	ipment update	•		iii C	ŭ 🖊	¢ 0	dlı (se	sarch Q
Schedule Management	BenQ School (4)	New Sc	hool 3							
License Management	BenQ School 2 (0)	Status *	Category	Name	Owned tags	Device ID		Current version	pack	
User Management	<ul> <li>BenQ School 3 (0)</li> <li>New BenQ School (2)</li> </ul>			Class A	BenQ School - New BenQ School - New Sc	TWWVATQZ		1.0.1.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:37	
About	New School 3 (2)			Class B	BenQ School  New BenQ School  New Sc	82LD7GFX		1.0.2.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:38	
	New School_2 (2)									
	New school_2019 (2)									

#### Creating a tag **before** device binding

You can also create a new tag before a device is paired with X-Sign Manager.

Available space : 99.7 GB							<u>*</u> A	ccount Ma	nagement	👱 BenQ	🌐 Language	1
CMS Broadcast	Equipment Manager	ment										
Equipment Management	« All device (6)	+ Equipme	nt update			0-0 E	ď	2	¢ 0	alı	Search	٩
Schedule Management	🗄 🗊 🧻	New Scho	ol 3									
Device Report	<ul> <li>BenQ School (4)</li> <li>BenQ School 2 (0)</li> </ul>	Status 👻	Category	Name	Owned tags	Device ID		Current	version	pack		
License Management User Management About	<ul> <li>BenQ School 3 (0)</li> <li>New BenQ School (2)</li> <li>New School 3 (0)</li> <li>New School_2 (2)</li> <li>New school_2019 (2)</li> </ul>				No equipment at pre	esent.						

• When selecting Add a New Device:

I. Fill in the device ID shown on the display and enter the device name. Click Edit to choose a tag.

Available space : 99.7 GB				22 Account Management	👱 BenQ	🌐 Language	1	
CMS Broadcast	Equipment Managem	ent > Add a New Device						
Equipment Management	Add a New Dev	ice						
Schedule Management	*Device ID:		0					
<ul> <li>License Management</li> <li>User Management</li> <li>About</li> </ul>	"Device Name:	Character Limit: 32 characters						
	Tag:	# New School 3 Edit #Equipment will apply selected tags' schedule and i						
		Finish						

2. Click **OK** to confirm.

Choos	ie tag	×
Choosed	1 tags :	
	BenQ School	
	BenQ School 2	
	BenQ School 3	
	New BenQ School	
~	New School 3	
	New School_2	

A device can be put into multiple tags.

3. A warning message will pop up. Click **Confirm** to proceed.



#### 4. Click **Finish** to complete the action.

Available space : 99.7			22 Account Management	💄 BenQ	🌐 Language	
CMS Broadcast	Equipment Managem	ent > Add a New Device				
Equipment Management	Add a New Dev	ce				
Schedule Management Device Report License Management	*Device ID:	0				
User Management About	*Device Name:	Character Limit: 32 characters				
	Tag:	# New School 3 Edit "Equipment will apply selected tags' schedule and i				
		Finish				

- When selecting **Join the service** (for version v2.3.0.0):
  - I. Select the tag that you want to apply for the equipment. Click **Join** to confirm.

			Please select tag •	e device setting tag:	Please check th
	Owned tags	Model	BenQ	Name 🔺	
		RP7502	apply IFF	RP7502C325	
_					

2. You can see the tag on the main page.

Available space : 255 2 GB					🚑 Accou	nt Management	💄 BenQ	Language	<b>,</b>
CMS Broadcast Equipment Management	ent								
Equipment Management	+ Eq	uipment upda	ate			160	- ali	Search	٩
Device Report	All dev	ice							
<ul> <li>License Management</li> </ul>	Status 🔻	Category	Name	Owned tags	Device ID	Current	Solution		
User Management About	•		RP7502C325	BenQ	OUM6RjY6REQ6QkY6QzM	2.3.1.1			
					< 1 >				

### Editing tags

1. You can edit tags by selecting the tag and clicking  $\swarrow$  .

CMS       Requirement Management         Device Report	CMS Broadcast		nont							
Equipment Management       Al device (6)       Equipment update       Image: Class A       Device Rang School / New BenQ School / New			neni							
Image:	Equipment Management		+ Equi	pment updat	e		to to the second	200	Search	
License Management     © Beng School 200     Status ~ Category     Name     Owned tags     Device ID     Current     Device ID	Schedule Management		Vew Sc	chool 4						
User Management     New BenQ School / New Sc			Status 👻	Category	Name	Owned tags	Device ID		pack	
About         New School 3 (0)         Class B         BenQ School - New BenQ School - New S 82LD7GFX         1.0.2.0         Premium 2019-12:28 15-48:38           New School_2 (2)         New School_2 (2)         Premium	User Management		•		Class A	BenQ School  New BenQ School  New S	TWWVATQZ	1.0.1.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:37	
New School_2 (2)	About		•		Class B	BenQ School New BenQ School New S	82LD7GFX	1.0.2.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:38	
		New School 4 (2)								
New school_2019 (2)										
		New school_2019 (2)								

2. Select new devices to be added to the tag and click **Confirm**.

Available space : 99.7 GB						👱 Account Management 🛛 🚨 Ber	Q 🌐 Language	0
CMS Broadcast	Equipment Ma	anagement > Edit ta	g					
Equipment Management	Edit tag							
Schedule Management	*Tag name	New School 4						
License Management	Selected equipm	nent(4)					Search	c
User Management About		Device Name 🔺	Owned tags	Device ID	Device version	pack		
		828_test	BenQ School	6H7WSHSF	1.2.2.0			
		Class A	BenQ School < New BenQ School < New School 4 <	TWWVATQZ	1.0.1.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:3	Ŧ	
		Class B	BenQ School  New BenQ School  New School 4	82LD7GFX	1.0.2.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:3	3	
		Lab_RM7502K		7LGDLRTP	2.0.1.0			
		Lab_RP7501K		JD3P2BJ6	2.0.1.0			
		test648	BenQ School	GR3EG4P6	1.2.2.0			
			i c	1 >				
			Cancel	Confirm	]			

#### 3. New devices are added to the tag.



# Editing devices

1. You can edit the device by selecting the device name and clicking  $\swarrow$  .

	Equipment Managen							
Equipment Management	« All device (6)	+ Equ	pment update	8		<b>≝</b> ₫	∠ ♦ 6	Search
Schedule Management	<b>H</b> = <b>i</b>	New S	chool 4					
Device Report license Management	<ul> <li>BenQ School (4)</li> <li>BenQ School 2 (0)</li> </ul>	Status 👻	Category	Name	Owned tags	Device ID	Current version	pack
Jser Management	BenQ School 3 (0)	0		Class A	BenQ School > New BenQ School > New	TWWVATQZ	1.0.1.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:37
bout	New BenQ School (2)	0		Class B	BenQ School < New BenQ School < New	82LD7GFX	1.0.2.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:38
	New School 4 (4)	0		Lab_RM7502K	New School 4	7LGDLRTP	2.0.1.0	
	<ul> <li>New School 2 (2)</li> <li>New school 2019 (2)</li> </ul>	•		Lab_RP7501K	New School 4	70365876	2010	

2. Click **Edit** to continue. Choose the tag and click **OK**.

Available space : 99.7 GB			22 Account Management	👱 BenQ	🌐 Language	,
CMS Broadcast	Equipment Manager	ment > Edit device				
Equipment Management	Edit device					
Schedule Management	Device ID:	TWWVATQZ				
<ul> <li>License Management</li> <li>User Management</li> <li>About</li> </ul>	Current License Code	BAM8-36ED-L2S2-V69J (Premium) Expiration Date : 2019-12-28 15:48:37 replace				
ADOUL	*Device Name:	Class A				
	Tag:	# BenQ Sch # New BenQ # New Scho # New Scho # New scho				
	[	Edit "Equipment will apply selected tags' schedule a				
		Submit Cancel Remove				

Choosed 3 tags :			
BenQ School	3		
New BenQ Sc	hool		
New School 3			
New School 4			
New School_2			
New school_2	019		
		Cancel	ОК

3. Click **Submit** to complete the action.

Available space : 99.7 GB			22 Account Management	💄 BenQ	🌐 Language	
CMS Broadcast	Equipment Managen	nent > Edit device				
Equipment Management	Edit device					
Schedule Management Device Report	Device ID:	TWWWATQZ				
<ul> <li>License Management</li> <li>User Management</li> </ul>	Current License Code	BAM8-36ED-L2S2-V69J (Premium) Expiration Date : 2019-12-28 15:48:37 replace				
About						
	*Device Name:	Class A				
	Tag:	# New BenQ # New Scho # New Scho				
		Edit *Equipment will apply selected tags' schedule a				
	[	Submit Cancel Remove				

# Equipment update

I. To update the device, click **Equipment update**.

X Available space : 99.7 GB							Account Mana	gement 💄 BenQ 🌐 Languag	ge 🏒
CMS Broadcast	Equipment Managen	nent							
Equipment Management	« All device (6)	+ Equi	ipment update	•		₩ Ŭ	2 0 0	Search	
Schedule Management	<b>8</b> R <b>1</b>	New Sc	chool 4						
Device Report License Management	<ul> <li>BenQ School (4)</li> <li>BenQ School 2 (0)</li> </ul>	Status 👻	Category	Name	Owned tags	Device ID	Current version	pack	
User Management	<ul> <li>BenQ School 3 (0)</li> <li>New BenQ School (2)</li> </ul>	•		Class A	BenQ School < New BenQ School < New S	TWWVATQZ	1.0.1.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:37	
About	New School 3 (0)	•		Class B	BenQ School  New BenQ School  New S	82LD7GFX	1.0.2.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:38	
	<ul> <li>New School 4 (2)</li> <li>New School 2 (2)</li> <li>New school 2019 (2)</li> </ul>								

2. Select the device you want to update, then click **Update**.

Schedule Management     Update     Search     Q       Device Report	Available space : 99.7				🔔 Aco	ount Management 🙎 BenQ 🕻	🕀 Language 🏾 🖊 🏴
Construction       Construction <th< td=""><td>CMS Broadcast</td><td>Equipment Management</td><td>&gt; X-Sign Player Upd</td><td>late</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></th<>	CMS Broadcast	Equipment Management	> X-Sign Player Upd	late			
Device Report     Update     Search     Q       License Management <ul> <li>B 282, test</li> <li>Class A</li> <li>Class B</li> <li>Lab, RM7502K</li> <li>Lab, RM7502K</li> <li>Lab, RP7501K</li> <li>V20.00</li> <li>Haven't updated yet</li> <li>Haven't updated</li></ul>	Equipment Management	X-Sign Player Upd	ate				•
Device Name     Description     Current version     Last Updated     Update Status       User Management <ul> <li>828_test</li> <li>v1220</li> <li>Haven't updated yet</li> <li>Class A</li> <li>v1020</li> <li>Haven't updated yet</li> <li>Class B</li> <li>v1020</li> <li>Haven't updated yet</li> <li>Last P7501K</li> <li>v2010</li> <li>Haven't updated yet</li> <li>Have</li></ul>	Schedule Management	Update				s	earch Q
User Management     Imagement       About     Imagement       About     Imagement       Imagement	License Management		Description	Current version	Last Updated	Update Status	
About         Class B         v10.2.0         Haven't updated yet           Lab_RM7502K         v20.1.0         Haven't updated yet           Lab_RP7501K         v20.1.0         Haven't updated yet	User Management						_
Lab_RM7502K     v2.0.1.0     Haven't updated yet       Lab_RP7501K     v2.0.1.0     Haven't updated yet	About						
				v2.0.1.0			
tesi648 v1.2.2.0 Haven't updated yet							
		test648		v1.2.2.0		Haven't updated yet	

🔊 Update the device software to the latest version before pairing with X-Sign Manager.

## Publishing messages

X-Sign Broadcast makes it easy to share content that is stored either locally or in the cloud, with support for texts, images, videos, office files, YouTube and more.

You can publish messages using **Create Schedule** interrupt or **Create interrupt** to suit your needs.

**Create Schedule** employs a calendar structure, delivering your message at a designated date or at a specific time.

**Create interrupt** can do a quick publish, delivering your message immediately. It is used when you need to deliver emergent messages.

Available space : 99.7 GB						:	Account Managen	nent 💄 BenQ 🌐 Language 🔎
CMS Broadcast	Equipment Manage	ment						
Equipment Management	« All device (6)	+ Equip	oment update			<u>الا</u>	2 * 0	Jan Search Q
Schedule Management	BenQ School (4)	New Sc	hool 4					
License Management	BenQ School 2 (0)	Status 👻	Category	Name	Owned tags	Device ID	Current version	pack
User Management	<ul> <li>BenQ School 3 (0)</li> <li>New BenQ School (2)</li> </ul>	•		Class A	BenQ School  New BenQ School  New	TWWWATQZ	1.0.1.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:37
About	New School 3 (0)			Class B	BenQ School < New BenQ School < New	82LD7GFX	1.0.2.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:38
	New School 4 (4)	0		Lab_RM7502K	New School 4	7LGDLRTP	2.0.1.0	
	New School_2 (2)	0		Lab_RP7501K	New School 4	JD3P28J6	2010	

### Using Create Schedule

1. Choose the tag or device you want to set schedule and click 🛗 to go to the schedule management page. You can publish your message to all devices or specific tags.

CMS Broadcast	Equipment Managem	nent							
Equipment Management	« All device (6)	+ Equi	pment update	•		<b>1</b>	2 0	Juli Search	Q
Schedule Management		Vew Sc	hool 4						
Device Report License Management	<ul> <li>BenQ School (4)</li> <li>BenQ School 2 (0)</li> </ul>	Status 👻	Category	Name	Owned tags	Device ID	Current version	pack	
User Management	BenQ School 3 (0)	•		Class A	BenQ School  New BenQ School  New S	TWWVATQZ	1.0.1.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:37	
About	<ul> <li>New BenQ School (2)</li> <li>New School 3 (0)</li> </ul>	•		Class B	BenQ School  New BenQ School  New S	82LD7GFX	1.0.2.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:38	
	New School_2(2)								

2. You can set schedule by selecting the date and time period. The **Create Schedule** window will pop up.

	Schedule managemen	(New School 4)					
Equipment Management	Interrupt today <	>		2019/12/08 - 14		1	day week mont
Schedule Management	12/8 Sun	12/9 Mon	12/10 Tue	12/11 Wed	12/12 Thu	12/13 Fri	12/14 Sat
Device Report	all-day						
License Management	am 07						
User Management	am 08						
About	am 09						
	am 10						
	am 11						
	pm 12						
	pm 01						
	pm 02						
	pm 03						
	pm 04						
	pm 05						
	pm 06						
	pm 07						
	pm 08						
	pm 09						

Four schedule creation types are provided: Text, Image, Video, File.

### Text (Create Schedule)

#### Click **Text**. You can edit the content by completing the following fields.

reate Schedule(A	Il device)	
Туре	Text Image Video <b>*</b> File <b>*</b> Template	
Text content	within 800 characters	
L	WIIRow         Stored as a text template (up to 5 groups)	
Style	Text style preview         /           2           Notice_1         Notice_2         /         /         /         /         /         2         /	
Duration	Image: 2020-11-14         Image: Second	
Important message	Play a warning tone at the same time and the message cannot be turned off	
Repeat playback	Day Every 1 Day     Week End 2020-11-14	3
Preview	Confirm Cancel	$\supset$

	ltem	Description
١.	Text content	Type the message you want to share.
2.	Style	Customize the style by creating your own module. You can add more styles by choosing the rightmost one.
3.	Duration	<ul> <li>Set the date and time you want to share the message.</li> <li>You can enable Important message and Repeat playback.</li> <li>You can set the end date and choose to repeat by day or week.</li> </ul>

#### Image (Create Schedule)

#### Create Schedule(All device) Туре Video Choose file Please select some image files Play speed 2 5s -Duration 2020-11-20 0 13 00 00 All Day to 🕓 19 Play once Important message Play a warning tone at the same time and the message cannot be turned off Repeat playback Every 1 Day Day O Week 3 End 🖻 2020-11-20 Pr Cancel

Click **Image**. You can edit the content by completing the following fields.

	ltem	Description
Ι.	File choose	Click <b>Choose</b> to enter the file uploading page. Then follow the instructions on screen to upload your image to be shown.
2.	Play speed	Select the play speed. Options are 3 seconds, 5 seconds, 10 seconds.
3.	Duration	• Set the date and time you want to share the image.
		• You can enable Important message and Repeat playback.
		• You can set the end date and choose to repeat by day or week.

#### Video (Create Schedule)

#### You can edit the content by completing the following fields.

	Туре	Text	Image Video ★ File ★ Template	
(	Choose file		ease select some video files Choose Iter a video link(YouTube)	
	Duration	Play once	20-11-20 ③ 13 00 to ③ 19 00 All Day	
	at message at playback	Pla	ay a warning tone at the same time and the message cannot be turned off	
		<ul><li>Day</li><li>Week</li></ul>	Every 1 Day End 🛱 2020-11-20	

	ltem	Description
Ι.	Choose file	• You can upload videos from your computer. Click <b>Choose</b> to enter the file uploading page. Then follow the instructions on screen to upload your video to be played.
		• You can also enter a YouTube video link to import the video.
2.	Duration	• Set the date and time you want to share the video.
		• You can enable Important message and Repeat playback.
		• You can set the end date and choose to repeat by day or week.

Confirm Cancel

#### File (Create Schedule)

The basic license cannot use this advanced function. Only the premium license can edit content for files like PowerPoint, PDF, Microsoft Word, Google Slides on Google Drive, Microsoft PowerPoint on Google Drive. Please contact the BenQ Administrator and get the license to publish.



Click File. You can edit the content by completing the following fields.

Preview

Cancel

	ltem	Description
Ι.	File choose	<ul> <li>You can upload files from your computer. The file formats can be Microsoft Word, Microsoft PowerPoint, PDF. Click <b>Choose</b> to enter the file uploading page. Then follow the instructions on screen to upload your file to be played.</li> <li>You can also enter a file link from Coords Drive to import the file</li> </ul>
		• You can also enter a file link from Google Drive to import the file.
2	Play speed	Select the play speed. Options are 10 seconds, 20 seconds, 30 seconds.
3.	Duration	• Set the date and time you want to share the file.
		• You can enable Important message and Repeat playback.
		• You can set the end date and choose to repeat by day or week.

Confirm

#### Template (Create Schedule)



	ltem	Description
Ι.	Template content	• You can use the constructed template to create the schedule. The default texts and images are for coronavirus prevention. You can change the texts and images by simply clicking them.
		• By clicking the texts, you can edit the text style to change the default ones.
		• By clicking the image, you can upload a new image to replace the default one. The image can be changed one by one.
2.	Duration	• Set the date and time you want to share the template.
		• You can enable Important message and Repeat playback.
		• You can set the end date and choose to repeat by day or week.

3. After all configuration is set, click **Confirm**. You will see the schedule on the schedule management page.

### Using Create interrupt

1. Choose the tag or device you want to add interrupt and click 💕 . You can publish your message to all devices or specific tags.

CMS Broadcast	Equipment Manager	ment							
Equipment Management	« All device (6)	+ Eq	uipment updat	e		₩ 🗹	2 <b>0</b> 0	alı (	Search 0
Schedule Management	<b>∎</b> , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	New S	ichool 4						
Device Report License Management	<ul> <li>BenQ School (4)</li> <li>BenQ School 2 (0)</li> </ul>	Status -	Category	Name	Owned tags	Device ID	Current version	pack	
User Management	<ul> <li>BenQ School 3 (0)</li> <li>New BenQ School (2)</li> </ul>	•		Class A	BenQ School < New BenQ School < New S	TWWVATQZ	1.0.1.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:3	7
About	New School 3 (0)	•		Class B	BenQ School  New BenQ School  New S	82LD7GFX	1.0.2.0	2019-12-28 15:48:3	3
	<ul> <li>New School 4 (2)</li> <li>New School 2 (2)</li> </ul>								
	New school_2019 (2)								

Four interrupt creation types are provided: Text, Image, Video, File.

#### Text (Create interrupt)

Click **Text**. You can edit the content by completing the following fields.

Type Text Image Video <b>*</b> File <b>*</b> Template	
Text content within 800 characters	
Style Text style preview Notice_2 2	
Important message     Play a warning tone at the same time and the message cannot be turned off       Play length     10	

	ltem	Description
١.	Text content	Type the message you want to interrupt.
2.	Style	Customize the style by creating your own module. You can add more styles by choosing the rightmost one.
3.	Play length	<ul> <li>You can enable Important message.</li> <li>Select the play length. Options are 5/10/15/20/25/30/35/40/45/50/ 55 minutes or 1, 2, 3,, 23 hours.</li> </ul>

#### Image (Create interrupt)

Click Image. You can edit the content by completing the following fields.

Create interrupt(All device)	×
Type Text Image Video <b>★</b> File <b>★</b> Template	
Choose file Please select some image files Choose	l
Play speed 5s •	2
Important message Play a warning tone at the same time and the message cannot be turned off	
Play length  Play once	3
Custom play time 00 10 00	
Preview	Cancel

	ltem	Description
Ι.	Choose file	Click <b>Choose</b> to enter the file uploading page. Then follow the instructions on screen to upload your image to be played.
2.	Play speed	Select the play speed. Options are 3 seconds, 5 seconds, 10 seconds.
3.	Play length	<ul> <li>You can enable Important message.</li> <li>You can set to play once or customize the play time.</li> </ul>

### Video (Create interrupt)

Click  $\ensuremath{\textbf{Video}}$  . You can edit the content by completing the following fields.

Туре	Text Image Video * File * Template
Choose file	Please select some video files     Choose
	Enter a video link(YouTube)
Important message	Play a warning tone at the same time and the message cannot be turned off
Play length	Play once 2
	Custom play time 0 00 10 00

	ltem	Description		
Ι.	Choose file	• You can upload videos from your computer. Click <b>Choose</b> to enter the file uploading page. Then follow the instructions on screen to upload your image to be played.		
		• You can also enter a YouTube video link to import the video.		
2.	Play length	• You can enable <b>Important message</b> .		
		• You can set to play once or customize the play time.		

#### File (Create interrupt)

The basic license cannot use this advanced function. Only the premium license can edit content for files like PowerPoint, PDF, Microsoft Word, Google Slides on Google Drive, Microsoft PowerPoint on Google Drive. Please contact the BenQ Administrator and get the license to publish.

Create interrupt(All o	levice)	×
Туре	Text Image Video ★ File ★ Template	
Choose file	<ul> <li>Please select a file</li> <li>Enter a file link(Google Drive)</li> </ul>	
Play speed	20s • 2	
Important message Play length	Play a warning tone at the same time and the message cannot be turned off           O         00         10         00         3	
Preview	Confirm Cancel	$\supset$

Click File. You can edit the content by completing the following fields.

	ltem	Description			
Ι.	Choose file	• You can upload files from your computer. The file formats can be Microsoft Word, Microsoft PowerPoint, PDF. Click <b>Choose</b> to enter the file uploading page. Then follow the instructions on screen to upload your file to be played.			
		• You can also enter a file link from Google Drive to import the file.			
2	Play speed	Select the play speed. Options are 10 seconds, 20 seconds, 30 seconds.			
3.	Play length	• You can enable <b>Important message</b> .			
		<ul> <li>You can set to play once or customize the play time.</li> </ul>			

#### Template (Create interrupt)

	Create interrupt(All de	evice)	×
	Туре	Text Image Video \star File ★ Template	
	Template content	CORONAVIRUS PREVENTION	
		Three simple prevention tips to protect yourself against Coronavirus	
	Important message Play length	Play a warning tone at the same time and the message cannot be turned off           Image: Original content of the same time and the message cannot be turned off           Image: Original content of the same time and the message cannot be turned off	
	Preview	Confirm	4
	ltem	Description	
Ι.	Template content	You can change texts and images to create interrupt. To texts and images, read Template (Create Schedule) on prore information.	-
3.	Play length	• You can enable <b>Important message</b> .	
		• You can set to play once or customize the play time.	

Click **Template**. You can edit the content by completing the following fields.

- 2. After all configuration is set, click **Confirm**. You will find the interrupted message/image/video/ file on the display.
- 3. You can close the broadcast by tapping the interrupted message area.



#### 4. A message will pop up. Click **Confirm** to close the broadcast.

	Close this broadcast ?
	Closing the content will not be restored and redisplayed. Are you sure you want to close it ?
	Confirm Cancel
Newly cre	eated interrupt will overwrite the previous one.

## Schedule Management (History)

You can check and edit your broadcast history by selecting **Schedule Management**.

CMS Broadcast	Schedule Managen	nent				
Equipment Management Schedule Management	Туре	Publishd time 👻	Published content	Published object	E O Z	Search Q Status
Device Report License Management User Management	Tag's schedule	2019-12-10 6:00 PM	Math test	#New School 4	bobbyger	Published
About	Tag's schedule	2019-12-10 6:00 PM	Math test	#New School 4	bobbyger	Retrieved
	Schedule(Cycle)	2019-01-16 3:49 PM	Proview	Class A	bobbyger	✓ Published
						$\otimes$

1. Select the type (schedule or interrupt) you want to check. You can retrieve or edit the selected item.

CMS Broadcast S	Schedule Manager	nent		View	Retrieve	Edit
quipment Management	Туре	Publishd time 👻	Published content	Process - Published object	Publisher	Search Q. Status
evice Report	Tag's schedule	2019-12-10 6:00 PM	Math test	#New School 4	bobbyger	~
lser Management						Published
	Tag's schedule	2019-12-10 6:00 PM	Math test	#New School 4	bobbyger	Retrieved
	Schedule(Cycle)	2019-01-16 3:49 PM	Preview	Class A	bobbyger	~
						Published

2. After clicking 💭 , you will see a warning in a popup window. Click **Confirm** if you want to retrieve the schedule or interrupt.



3. After clicking 🖍 , you will see an editing window. Click **Confirm** after all editing is set.

Edit schedu	le(Class A)	×
Туре	Text	
Text content	Welcome to BenQ School	
Style	t style preview Board2	
Duration	2018-11-05       C       13▼:00▼:00▼       to       C       18▼:00▼:00▼       All Day       ✓ Cycle         O Day       Every       1       Day       End       2018-11-05	
Remove sch	nedule Confirm Cancel	$\supset$

4. If you want to delete a schedule or interrupt, you can also click the remove button.

Edit schedu	e(Class A)	×
Type Text content	Text Welcome to BenQ School	
Style	E style preview Board2	
Duration	<sup>2</sup> 2018-11-05 <sup>O</sup>	
Remove sch	edule Contirm Cancel	)

5. You will see a message in a popup window. Click **Confirm** if you want to remove the schedule or interrupt.



## **Device Report**

- 1. To access the activity report of the devices, click **Device Report**.
- 2. Choose Tag/Equipment and Date range, then click Export Report.

Available space : 99.7 GB	ᆂ Account Management 🚨 BenQ 🔀 Language	1
CMS Broadcast	Device Report	
Equipment Management	Tag / Equipment:     All device <ul> <li>all</li> <li>Date range:</li> <li>Last 7 days</li> <li>2019-12-05</li> <li>to</li> <li>2019-12-11</li> <li>Jpdate</li> </ul> Device     Total runtime *	
Device Report License Management	828_test 00 hour 00 min	
User Management	Class A 00 hour 00 min	
About	Class B 00 hour 00 min	
	Lab_RM7502K 00 hour 00 min	
	Lab_RP7501K 00 hour 00 min	
	test648 00 hour 00 min	
	< 1 >	
	Export Report	

- 3. The report is exported as a csv file. You can open it with Microsoft Excel.
- 4. You can also export the report by clicking

Available space : 99.7 GB						22	Account Manager	nent 💄 BenQ 🌐 Languag	•
CMS Broadcast	Equipment Manager	nent							
Equipment Management	<ul> <li>All device (6)</li> </ul>	+ Equi	pment update	•		ii 🗹 🌶		ıllı Search	Q
Schedule Management	<b>B R E</b>	New Sc	thool 4						
Device Report License Management	<ul> <li>BenQ School (4)</li> <li>BenQ School 2 (0)</li> </ul>	Status +	Category	Name	Owned tags	Device ID	Current version	pack	
User Management	BenQ School 3 (0)			Class A	BenQ School  New BenQ School  New	TWWVATQZ	1.0.1.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:37	
About	New BenQ School (2)			Class B	BenQ School  New BenQ School  New	82LD7GFX	1.0.2.0	Premium 2019-12-28 15:48:38	
	New School 4 (4)	0		Lab_RM7502K	New School 4	7LGDLRTP	2.0.1.0		
	<ul> <li>New School 2 (2)</li> <li>New school_2019 (2)</li> </ul>	•		Lab_RP7501K	New School 4	J03P2BJ6	2010		

## User management

X 1 Set Permission User Management CMS Set role. \* \*\* Equipment Management Schedule Management Account Name E-mail Role 🚯 🔺 Permission Device Report Teache All tags benqbenq123@ya nq123 ng123@ License Managem User Management About 1

Go to **User Management** and select the account you want to manage.

• As the administrator, you can set the role for the account by clicking 🔹 . You can set the account to be Administrator or Teacher.

Set role	×
Administrator	
• Teacher	
	Cancel apply

• As the administrator, you can also set permission for the account by clicking 2. You can assign the account to edit broadcasts on devices in specific display groups.

